
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CONSOLIDATED REDEVELOPMENT 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY - OVERSIGHT BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

County Government Center Board Chambers 
701 Ocean Street, Room 525, Santa Cruz, CA 

Zoom Link   https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82943357111   
 Telephone +1 669 900 6833       Webinar ID: 829 4335 7111 

Tuesday, March 4, 2025 – 9:00 AM 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Agency 
– Oversight Board will convene a Special Meeting on Tuesday, March 4, 2025, to consider
minutes of the 1/15/25 meeting, election of the Chair and Vice Chair, Bond Refunding, and 
Oversight Board member orientation. The meeting will take place in person at the Santa Cruz 
County Government Center, 701 Ocean Street, Room 525, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, beginning at 
9:00 AM or thereafter. The public may attend either in person in the Board Chambers or may join 
the meeting virtually by computer or telephone using the details provided. There will be an 
opportunity for the public to address the Board on the Special Meeting topics. 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

REGULAR AGENDA 

3. Adopt resolution approving the meeting minutes of the January 15, 2025, Santa
Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board
meeting 

4. Adopt resolution electing Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for the Santa Cruz
County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board 

5. Adopt resolution providing for the issuance and sale of Tax Allocation Refunding
Bonds, 2025 Series A by the Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
and approving certain other actions in connection therewith 

6. Consider presentation on the purpose and duties of the Santa Cruz County
Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board 

ADJOURNMENT 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82943357111


County of Santa Cruz Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board

Agenda Item Submittal
From: Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Subject: Approval of Meeting Minutes: January 15, 2025 CRSA-OB 
Meeting
Meeting Date: March 4, 2025

Formal Title: Adopt resolution approving the meeting minutes of the January 15, 2025, 
Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board 
meeting

Recommended Actions
Adopt resolution approving the meeting minutes of the January 15, 2025, Santa Cruz 
County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board meeting.

Executive Summary
Health and Safety Code Section 34179(e) requires that all actions taken by the 
Oversight Board shall be adopted by resolution.

Submitted By: 
Edith Driscoll, Auditor-Controller-Treasure-Tax Collector

Recommended By:  
Carlos J. Palacios, County Administrative Officer

Artificial Intelligence Acknowledgment:  
Artificial Intelligence (AI) did not significantly contribute to the development of this 
agenda item.

4

Packet Pg. 2



BEFORE THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CONSOLIDATED 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

On the motion of Oversight Board Member ____________ duly seconded by Oversight Board 
Member __________ the following resolution is adopted: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEETING MINUTES OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED OVERSIGHT BOARD 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board ("Oversight Board") has been established to direct the five Redevelopment 
Successor Agencies of Santa Cruz County (“Successor Agencies”) to take certain actions to wind 
down the affairs of the respective former Redevelopment Agencies (“Agencies”) in accordance 
with the requirements of Assembly Bill 26 (“ABx1 26”), also known as chapter 5, Statutes 2011, 
First Extraordinary Session, which added Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 of Division 24 of the California 
Health and Safety Code, Assembly Bill 1484, also known as chapter 26, Statutes of 2012, and 
Senate Bill 107, 2015-16 Legislative Session, which made certain revisions to the statutes added 
by ABx1 26; and 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34179(e) requires that all actions taken by 
the Oversight Board shall be adopted by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board conducted a public meeting on January 15, 2025, the 
minutes of which are attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and  

WHEREAS, these meeting minutes reflect the actions of the Oversight Board; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Santa Cruz 
County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board as follows: 

SECTION 1.  The above Recitals are true and correct. 

SECTION 2.  The meeting minutes of the Oversight Board meeting on January 15, 2025, are 
hereby approved. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF
4

Packet Pg. 3



 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Consolidated 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board, this 4th day of March, 2025 by the following 
vote, to wit: 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

_______________________________________________
__ 

Chairperson of the Santa Cruz County Consolidated 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk of the Oversight Board 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Attorney for the Oversight Board 
 
 
Distribution: 

Auditor-Controller 
CAO 
County Counsel 
Successor Agency 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF

Jason M. Heath

4

Packet Pg. 4



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ CONSOLIDATED REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 

January 15, 2025 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 9:04 AM
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Adam Spickler Board Member Present 
Joe Hall Board Member Present 
Jim Anderson Board Member -- Acting Chair Present 
Liann Reyes Board Member Present 
Kathryn Mintz Board Member Present 
Manu Koenig (Chair) Board Member (BOS) Absent 
Allan Timms Board Member  Present 

2. CONSIDERATION OF LATE ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA; ADDITIONS AND
DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA

None. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
No one addressed the Board.

REGULAR AGENDA 

4. Adopt resolution approving the meeting minutes of the January 16, 2024, Santa
Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board
meeting
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [5 TO 0] 
MOVER: Joe Hall, Board Member 
SECONDER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
AYES: Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Spickler, Koenig 

5. Adopt resolution electing Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for the Santa Cruz
County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: NO ACTION TAKEN 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF
4

Packet Pg. 5



Minutes - January 15, 2025 

2 

6. Adopt resolution approving the schedule for meetings in 2025 and January 2026 of
the Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight
Board
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Liann Reyes, Board Member 
SECONDER: Allan Timms 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

7. Adopt resolution approving the Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor
Agency Administrative Budget for 2025-26
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
SECONDER: Joe Hall, Board Member 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

8. Adopt resolution approving the Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor
Agency Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) for 2025-26
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Adam Spickler, Board Member 
SECONDER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

9. Adopt resolution approving the City of Watsonville Redevelopment Successor
Agency Administrative Budget for 2025-26
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Adam Spickler, Board Member 
SECONDER: Joe Hall, Board Member 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF
4

Packet Pg. 6



Minutes - January 15, 2025 

3 

10. Adopt resolution approving the City of Watsonville Redevelopment Successor
Agency Recognized Obligation Schedule for 2025-26
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Allan Timms 
SECONDER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

11. Adopt resolution approving the Scotts Valley Redevelopment Successor Agency
Administrative Budget for 2025-26
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Allan Timms 
SECONDER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

12. Adopt resolution approving the Scotts Valley Redevelopment Successor Agency
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 2025-26
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
SECONDER: Allan Timms 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

13. Adopt resolution approving the Original Loan Agreement between the City of Scotts
Valley and the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Scotts Valley, dated July 16,
2009, and the Loan Agreement between the City of Scotts Valley and the Successor
Agency of the Scotts Valley Redevelopment Agency, dated May 16, 2012
No one addressed the Board.

RESULT: ADOPTED [6 TO 0] 
MOVER: Kathryn Mintz, Board Member 
SECONDER: Joe Hall, Board Member 
AYES: Spickler, Hall, Anderson, Reyes, Mintz, Timms 
ABSENT: Koenig 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF
4

Packet Pg. 7



Minutes - January 15, 2025 

4 

ADJOURNMENT – 9:17 AM 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

APPROVED: _______________________________________ 
Jim Anderson, Acting Chair of the Oversight Board 

ATTEST: _______________________________________ 
Juliette Rezzato, Clerk of the Oversight Board 

DATE: _______________________________________ 

NOTE: This set of CRSA Oversight Board Meeting Minutes is scheduled for 
approval by the Oversight Board on March 4, 2025. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF
4

Packet Pg. 8



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 2E6FAC23-2FCB-40C9-8525-03AFB55D04BF Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: Resolution CRSA-OB minutes for 2025-01-15.docx, Draft Minutes for Appro...

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 6 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 0 Kim Namba

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

701 Ocean Street

Santa Cruz, CA  95060

Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov

IP Address: 75.141.162.199 

Record Tracking
Status: Original

2/12/2025 11:22:04 AM

Holder: Kim Namba

Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: FedRamp

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: County of Santa Cruz Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jason M. Heath

jason.heath@santacruzcountyca.gov

County Counsel

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 73.189.24.90

Sent: 2/12/2025 11:24:08 AM

Viewed: 2/12/2025 12:01:48 PM 

Signed: 2/12/2025 12:02:58 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 2/12/2025 12:01:48 PM
      ID: 7d58ca6f-d2ad-4a1c-baf5-865e27dbdbf1

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 2/12/2025 11:24:08 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 2/12/2025 12:01:48 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 2/12/2025 12:02:58 PM

Completed Security Checked 2/12/2025 12:02:58 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

4

Packet Pg. 9



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE 

From time to time, County of Santa Cruz (we, us or Company) may be required by law to 

provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and 

conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign 

system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this 

information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature 

Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to 

use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign 

system. 

Getting paper copies 

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

Withdrawing your consent 

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

Consequences of changing your mind 

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/28/2022 5:23:37 PM
Parties agreed to: Jason M. Heath

4

Packet Pg. 10



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact County of Santa Cruz:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us 

 

To advise County of Santa Cruz of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us 

at nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us and in the body of such request you must state: your 

previous email address, your new email address.  We do not require any other information from 

you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from County of Santa Cruz  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us and 

in the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with County of Santa Cruz  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

4

Packet Pg. 11



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page,

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;

ii. send us an email to nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us and in the body of such request you

must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any

other information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing

consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software 

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically 

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future

reference and access; and

 Until or unless you notify County of Santa Cruz as described above, you consent to

receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations,

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made

available to you by County of Santa Cruz during the course of your relationship with

County of Santa Cruz.

4

Packet Pg. 12

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


County of Santa Cruz Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board

Agenda Item Submittal
From: Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Subject: Elect Chair and Vice Chair
Meeting Date: March 4, 2025

Formal Title: Adopt resolution electing Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for the Santa 
Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board

Recommended Actions
Adopt resolution electing one member to serve as Chairperson and one member to 
serve as Vice Chairperson for the Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Oversight Board (Oversight Board).

Executive Summary
It is necessary to elect a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson in order to conduct the 
business of the Oversight Board.

Discussion
A Chairperson of the Oversight Board must be selected to preside over the Oversight 
Board’s meetings.  A Vice Chairperson should also be selected to preside over the 
meeting when the Chairperson is unavailable.  Staff recommends that the next 
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson serve until the January 2026 meeting. 

Submitted By: 
Edith Driscoll, Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

Recommended By:  
Carlos J. Palacios, County Administrative Officer

Artificial Intelligence Acknowledgment:  
Artificial Intelligence (AI) did not significantly contribute to the development of this 
agenda item.

5

Packet Pg. 13



BEFORE THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CONSOLIDATED 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

On the motion of Oversight Board Member ____________ duly seconded by Oversight Board 
Member __________ the following resolution is adopted: 

RESOLUTION ELECTING A CHAIRPERSON AND VICE 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

CONSOLIDATED REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board ("Oversight Board") has been established to direct the five Redevelopment 
Successor Agencies of Santa Cruz County (“Successor Agencies”) to take certain actions to wind 
down the affairs of the respective former Redevelopment Agencies (“Agencies”) in accordance 
with the requirements of Assembly Bill 26 (“ABx1 26”), also known as chapter 5, Statutes 2011, 
First Extraordinary Session, which added Part 1.8 and Part 1.85 of Division 24 of the California 
Health and Safety Code, Assembly Bill 1484, also known as chapter 26, Statutes of 2012, and 
Senate Bill 107, 2015-16 Legislative Session, which made certain revisions to the statutes added 
by ABx1 26; and 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34179(e) requires that all actions taken by 
the Oversight Board shall be adopted by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board conducted a public meeting on March 4, 2025, and 
elected __________________ as Chairperson and _________________ as Vice Chairperson, 
each to serve until January, 2026; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Santa Cruz 
County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board as follows: 

SECTION 1.  The above Recitals are true and correct. 

SECTION 2.  __________________ is elected as Chairperson and _________________ is 
elected as Vice Chairperson, each to serve until January, 2026. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 21D528E0-29D1-499C-9703-452911CF661F
5

Packet Pg. 14



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Consolidated 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board, this 4th day of March, 2025 by the following 
vote, to wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_______________________________________________
__ 

Chairperson of the Santa Cruz County Consolidated 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Clerk of the Oversight Board 

Approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
Attorney for the Oversight Board 
 

Distribution: 
Auditor-Controller 
CAO 
County Counsel 

Docusign Envelope ID: 21D528E0-29D1-499C-9703-452911CF661F

Jason M. Heath

5

Packet Pg. 15



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 21D528E0-29D1-499C-9703-452911CF661F Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: 2025-03-4 resolution elect chair.docx

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 2 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 0 Kim Namba

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

701 Ocean Street

Santa Cruz, CA  95060

Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov

IP Address: 75.141.162.199 

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             2/12/2025 11:26:33 AM

Holder: Kim Namba

             Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: FedRamp

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: County of Santa Cruz Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jason M. Heath

jason.heath@santacruzcountyca.gov

County Counsel

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 73.189.24.90

Sent: 2/12/2025 11:27:43 AM

Viewed: 2/12/2025 12:00:38 PM 

Signed: 2/12/2025 12:01:11 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 2/12/2025 12:00:38 PM
      ID: ec52bde4-7182-41d1-af45-496a4472ebb0

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 2/12/2025 11:27:43 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 2/12/2025 12:00:38 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 2/12/2025 12:01:11 PM

Completed Security Checked 2/12/2025 12:01:11 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

5

Packet Pg. 16



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, County of Santa Cruz (we, us or Company) may be required by law to 

provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and 

conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign 

system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this 

information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature 

Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to 

use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign 

system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/28/2022 5:23:37 PM
Parties agreed to: Jason M. Heath

5

Packet Pg. 17



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

How to contact County of Santa Cruz: 

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us 

To advise County of Santa Cruz of your new email address 

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us 

at nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us and in the body of such request you must state: your 

previous email address, your new email address.  We do not require any other information from 

you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

To request paper copies from County of Santa Cruz 

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us and 

in the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

To withdraw your consent with County of Santa Cruz 

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

5

Packet Pg. 18



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page,

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;

ii. send us an email to nada.algharib@santacruzcounty.us and in the body of such request you

must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any

other information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing

consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software 

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically 

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future

reference and access; and

 Until or unless you notify County of Santa Cruz as described above, you consent to

receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations,

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made

available to you by County of Santa Cruz during the course of your relationship with

County of Santa Cruz.

5

Packet Pg. 19

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


County of Santa Cruz Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board

Agenda Item Submittal
From: Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Subject: Refinancing County Redevelopment Successor Agency Bonds
Meeting Date: March 4, 2025

Formal Title: Adopt resolution providing for the issuance and sale of Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A by the Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor 
Agency and approving certain other actions in connection therewith

Recommended Actions
Adopt resolution providing for the issuance and sale of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 
2025 Series A (Refunding Bonds) in an amount not exceeding $95,000,000 by the 
Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency and approving certain other 
actions in connection therewith.

Executive Summary
The Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency’s Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, 2015 Series A (2015A Bonds) and Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series 
A (2016 Bonds) are now eligible to be refinanced. If approved, the resolution would 
authorize the refunding of the 2015A Bonds and 2016 Bonds by the Santa Cruz County 
Redevelopment Successor Agency (“Successor Agency”), with an expected total 
savings of $8.8 million over the remaining 11 years (average 7.5% reduction in 
payments). Approximately $1.16 million of the savings will be distributed to the County’s 
General Fund, $7,231,000 would be distributed to the schools and College District and 
the balance would be distributed to affected special districts in the form of additional 
residual Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund payments. 

Background
There are currently five series of bonds of the Successor Agency outstanding, with four 
of the five series issued in 2015, 2016 and in 2017 to refinance bonds previously issued 
by the Redevelopment Agency.
The County’s debt policy states that refinancings which produce a net present value 
savings of at least 4% of the refunded debt will be considered economically viable.  The 
Successor Agency’s 2015A Bonds and 2016 Bonds have reached their call date and 
refinancing these series will produce an economic benefit. 

Discussion

There are currently $55,255,000 2015A Bonds outstanding, bearing an interest rate of 
5%, with a final maturity of 2035. There are currently $42,025,000 2016 Bonds 
outstanding, bearing an average interest rate of 4.27%, with a final maturity of 2036. 

The Successor Agency’s Financial Advisor estimates that refinancing of the 2015A 
Bonds and 2016 Bonds will be at an effective rate of 3.01% (rates current as of January 

6

Packet Pg. 20



2025).  The repayment is scheduled to occur over the same term as the existing bonds.

The total debt service savings over the remaining 11 years that the 2015A Bonds and 
2016 Bonds are outstanding is approximately $8,800,000, which will increase the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) residual available to be distributed to 
all taxing agencies. This represents a reduction in payments of 7.5%. The County’s 
refinancing policy requires a minimum savings of 4%.

The debt service for Fiscal Year 2024-25 is already funded through the approved 24-25 
ROPS, so there are no savings in the first year.  The increased residual RPTTF as a 
result of the refinancing would be distributed in future years to the Live Oak and Soquel 
School Districts, the College District, the County and other taxing agencies through the 
regular RPTTF distribution process.  

Between the time that the refinancing is approved by the Oversight Board and the time 
that the Successor Agency can actually enter the market to sell the refunding bonds 
based on the Health and Safety Code (HSC) requirements (discussed below), interest 
rates could increase or decrease, and debt service savings may be reduced or may 
improve.  Therefore, the current estimate of $8.8 million savings to be shared among 
taxing agencies over the next 11 years is an estimate at this time.  For every quarter 
percent change in the bonds interest rate, the total savings will be increased or 
decreased by $1.65 million, or an average annual savings increase of $150,000.   If 
rates decrease by a quarter percent, the reduction in total payments increases from 
7.5% to 9.0%. If rates increase by a quarter percent, the reduction in total payments 
decreases from 7.5% to 5.9%.

Authorization Process

The Successor Agency authorized the issuance of the refunding bonds on February 11, 
2025 (Attachment B).  Final approval authority for any refinancing resides with your 
Board and the Department of Finance

In order to authorize the issuance of the refunding bonds, your Board is being presented 
with a resolution for consideration.  The resolution authorizes sale of a principal amount 
of refunding bonds not-to-exceed $95,000,000 to refinance the 2015A Bonds and the 
2016 Bonds.

The Department of Finance has 60 days after review of the resolution to authorize the 
Successor Agency to proceed with the refunding.  Therefore, the bonds are expected to 
be sold in early June after Department of Finance approval is received.

Financial Impact

The increase in the residual property tax (RPTTF) that gets distributed to all the taxing 
entities will increase by approximately $8.8 over the remaining 11 years that the 2015A 
Bonds and 2016 Bonds are outstanding, based on interest rates as of December 2024, 
shown in the attached Debt Service Savings Analysis (Attachment C). The incremental 
residual property tax will be distributed to taxing agencies, including the County, through 
the regular RPTTF distribution process. The County will receive approximately 13.2% of 
the benefit of the reduced debt service, and the remaining 86.8% of the benefit will be 
shared among the school districts, the college district, and other taxing agencies.

6

Packet Pg. 21



The Dissolution Act also provides that staff costs related to refunding proceedings can 
be recovered as authorized by Section 34177.5(f) of the Health and Safety Code.

Submitted By: 
Edith Driscoll, Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

Recommended By:  
Carlos J. Palacios, County Administrative Officer

Artificial Intelligence Acknowledgment:  
Artificial Intelligence (AI) did not significantly contribute to the development of this 
agenda item.

6

Packet Pg. 22



BEFORE THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CONSOLIDATED REDEVELOPMENT 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

On the motion of ________ duly seconded by ________ the following resolution is adopted: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 
TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS, 2025 SERIES A 
BY THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND APPROVING CERTAIN OTHER 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, the County of Santa Cruz Redevelopment Agency (the �Prior Agency�) was 
a public body, corporate and politic, duly created, established and authorized to transact business 
and exercise its powers under and pursuant to the provisions of the Community Redevelopment 
Law (Part 1 of Division 24 (commencing with Section 33000) of the Health and Safety Code of 
the State of California) (the �Law�), and the powers of the Prior Agency included the power to 
issue Bonds for any of its corporate purposes; and 

WHEREAS, a redevelopment plan for a redevelopment project known and designated as 
the Live Oak/Soquel Community Improvement Project Area (the �Redevelopment Project�) has 
been adopted and approved by Ordinance No. 3836 of the Board of Supervisors (the �Board�) of 
the County of Santa Cruz (the �County�), and all requirements of the Law for and precedent to the 
adoption and approval of the Redevelopment Project have been duly complied with; and 

WHEREAS the Prior Agency previously issued its Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds 
2000 Series A (the �2000 Series A Bonds�), Tax Allocation Bonds, 2005 Series A (the �2005 
Series A Bonds�) and Tax Allocation Bonds, 2009 Series A (the �2009 Series A Bonds�) to finance 
improvements of benefit to the Redevelopment Project; and 

WHEREAS the Successor Agency previously issued its (i) Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, 2015 Series A (the �2015 Series A Bonds�) to refund certain of the outstanding 2000 
Series A Bonds and the outstanding 2005 Series A Bonds and (ii) Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, 2016 Series A (the �2016 Series A Bonds� and, together with the 2015 Series A Bonds, 
the �Refunded Bonds�) to refund the outstanding 2009 Series A Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, Section 34177.5 authorizes the Successor Agency to issue refunding bonds 
pursuant to Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of 
Title 5 of the Government Code (the �Refunding Law�) for the purpose of achieving debt service 
savings within the parameters set forth in Section 34177.5(a)(1) (the �Savings Parameters�); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined that, based on current conditions in the 
municipal bond market, it will achieve debt service savings in compliance with the Savings 
Parameters as evidenced by the analysis prepared by its Municipal Advisor, Harrell & Company 
Advisors, LLC, describing potential savings that will accrue to the Successor Agency and to 
applicable taxing entities as a result of the refunding of the Refunded Bonds (the �Debt Service 
Savings Analysis�); and 

6

Packet Pg. 23



-2-

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency proposes to achieve the potential debt service savings 
evidenced by the Debt Service Savings Analysis by the issuance of its Santa Cruz County 
Redevelopment Successor Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A (the �Refunding 
Bonds�) pursuant to the Law, the Refunding Law and the form of Indenture of Trust, dated as of 
February 1, 2025, by and between the Successor Agency and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., as trustee (the �Indenture�) on file with the Clerk of the Board; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 34179, this Oversight Board has been established for the 
Successor Agency and the Successor Agency by its resolution adopted February 11, 2025, (the 
�Successor Agency Resolution�) requested that the Oversight Board pursuant to 
Section 34177.5(f) direct the Successor Agency to undertake such refunding proceedings by the 
issuance of the Refunding Bonds, it being understood that such direction by the Oversight Board 
will enable the Successor Agency to recover its related costs in connection with the refunding 
proceedings, as authorized by Section 34177.5(f); and 

WHEREAS, in the Successor Agency Resolution, the Successor Agency approved the 
issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds and authorized the execution and delivery of the 
Indenture, subject to the conditions set forth in the Successor Agency Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, in the Successor Agency Resolution, the Successor Agency also requested 
that this Oversight Board approve the issuance of the Refunding Bonds pursuant to the Successor 
Agency Resolution and the Indenture and that this Oversight Board make certain determinations 
described below on which the Successor Agency will rely in undertaking the refunding 
proceedings and the issuance of the Refunding Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has, with the assistance of its Disclosure Counsel and 
its Municipal Advisor, caused to be prepared a form of Preliminary Official Statement and 
approved a final Official Statement describing the Refunding Bonds and containing material 
information relating to the Refunding Bonds, the preliminary form of which was submitted to the 
Successor Agency and approved for distribution to persons and institutions interested in 
purchasing the Refunding Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency will sell the Refunding Bonds by competitive sale and 
will authorize and direct its officers and staff to implement the sale and delivery of the Refunding 
Bonds,; and 

WHEREAS, this Oversight Board has completed its review of the refunding proceedings 
and the Debt Service Savings Analysis and wishes at this time to give its approval to the issuance 
of the Refunding Bonds by the Successor Agency without further authorization or approval by this 
Board; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY THE 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CONSOLIDATED REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
OVERSIGHT BOARD, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Determination of Savings.  This Oversight Board has determined that there 
are significant potential savings available to the Successor Agency and to applicable taxing entities 
in compliance with the Savings Parameters by the issuance by the Successor Agency of the 

6

Packet Pg. 24



-3-

Refunding Bonds to provide funds to refund and defease the Refunded Bonds, all as evidenced by 
the Debt Service Savings Analysis presented herewith and on file with the Clerk of the Board of 
the Oversight Board, which Debt Service Savings Analysis is hereby approved. 

Section 2. Direction to Refund.  The Oversight Board hereby directs the Successor 
Agency to undertake the refunding proceedings pursuant to Section 34177.5(a)(1) for the issuance, 
sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds, as requested in the Successor Agency Resolution 
presented herewith and on file with the Secretary of the Oversight Board. 

Section 3. Approval of Issuance of the Refunding Bonds.  As authorized by 
Section 34177.5(f) and Section 34180, this Oversight Board hereby approves the issuance by the 
Successor Agency of the Refunding Bonds pursuant to Section 34177.5(a)(1) and under applicable 
provisions of the Law and the Refunding Law and as provided in the Successor Agency Resolution 
and the Indenture in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $95,000,000, provided that 
the principal and interest payable with respect to the Refunding Bonds complies in all respects 
with the requirements of the Savings Parameters, as shall be certified to by the Municipal Advisor 
upon delivery of the Refunding Bonds. 

Section 4. Issuance in Separate Series.  The Refunding Bonds may be issued as a 
single issue, or from time to time in separate series, as the Successor Agency shall determine.  The 
approval of the issuance of the Refunding Bonds by the Oversight Board shall constitute the 
approval of each and every separate series of Refunding Bonds, without the need for any further 
approval from the Oversight Board, provided that each such separate series of Refunding Bonds 
complies in all respects with the Saving Parameters required to be met by Section 34177.5(a)(1). 

Section 5. Determinations by the Oversight Board.  As requested by the Successor 
Agency in the Successor Agency Resolution, the Oversight Board makes the following 
determinations upon which the Successor Agency shall rely in undertaking the refunding 
proceedings and the issuance of the Refunding Bonds: 

(a) The Successor Agency is authorized, as provided in Section 34177.5(f), to
recover its costs related to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds from the proceeds of the 
Refunding Bonds, including the cost of reimbursing the County of Santa Cruz for 
administrative staff time spent with respect to the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery 
of the Refunding Bonds; 

(b) The application of proceeds of the Refunding Bonds by the Successor
Agency to the refunding and defeasance of the Refunded Bonds, as well as to the payment 
by the Successor Agency of all costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, as provided in 
Section 34177.5(a), shall be implemented by the Successor Agency promptly upon sale 
and delivery of the Refunding Bonds, and, notwithstanding Section 34177.3 or any other 
provision of law to the contrary, no further approval of the Oversight Board, the California 
Department of Finance, the Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax 
Collector, or any other person or entity other than the Successor Agency shall be required; 
and 

6

Packet Pg. 25



6

Packet Pg. 26



RESOLUTION NO. 10 - 2025 

On Motion of Supervisor Cummings, duly seconded by Supervisor Koenig 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TAX 
ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS, 2025 SERIES A TO 
REFUND BONDS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND 
APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
INDENTURE OF TRUST, NOTICE OF INTENTION TO SELL, 
OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE, PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT, CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
AND ESCROW AGREEMENTS AND PROVIDING OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE 
REFUNDING BONDS 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Agency (the “Prior Agency”) was a 
public body, corporate and politic, duly created, established and authorized to transact business 
and exercise its powers under and pursuant to the provisions of the Community Redevelopment 
Law (Part 1 of Division 24 (commencing with Section 33000) of the Health and Safety Code of 
the State of California) (the “Law”), and the powers of the Santa Cruz County Redevelopment 
Agency included the power to issue bonds for any of its corporate purposes; and 

WHEREAS, a Redevelopment Plan for a redevelopment project known and designated as 
the Live Oak/Soquel Community Improvement Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project”) has 
been adopted and approved by Ordinance No. 3836 of the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of 
the County of Santa Cruz (the “County”), and all requirements of the Law for and precedent to the 
adoption and approval of the Redevelopment Project have been duly complied with; and 

WHEREAS the Prior Agency previously issued its Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds 
2000 Series A (the “2000 Series A Bonds”), Tax Allocation Bonds, 2005 Series A (the “2005 
Series A Bonds”) and Tax Allocation Bonds, 2009 Series A (the “2009 Series A Bonds”) to finance 
improvements of benefit to the Redevelopment Project; and 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2011, the California Legislature adopted ABxl 26 (the 
“Dissolution Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the California Supreme Court subsequently upheld the provisions of the 
Dissolution Act, resulting in the Prior Agency being dissolved as of February 1, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2012, the Board adopted Resolution No. 5-2012 declaring 
itself as the successor agency to the Prior Agency (the “Successor Agency”) upon the dissolution 
of the Prior Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the powers, assets, duties and obligations of the Prior Agency were transferred 
on February 1, 2012 to the Successor Agency; and 

7.g
ADOPTED 2/11/2025 
Board of Supervisors 

DOC-2025-069

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 27



2 

WHEREAS, on or about June 27, 2012, the California Legislature adopted AB 1484 as a 
trailer bill in connection with the 2012-13 California budget; and 

WHEREAS, AB 1484 added various provisions to the Law, including section 
34177.5(a)(1) thereof which specifically authorizes the issuance of refunding bonds by the 
Successor Agency in certain circumstances to refund bonds and indebtedness of the Prior Agency; 
and 

WHEREAS the Successor Agency previously issued its (i) Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, 2015 Series A (the “2015 Series A Bonds”) to refund certain of the outstanding 2000 
Series A Bonds and the outstanding 2005 Series A Bonds and (ii) Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, 2016 Series A (the “2016 Series A Bonds” and, together with the 2015 Series A Bonds, 
the “Refunded Bonds”) to refund the outstanding 2009 Series A Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, Section 34177.5(a)(1) authorizes the Successor Agency to undertake 
proceedings for the refunding of outstanding bonds and other obligations of the Successor Agency 
in order to achieve debt service savings within the parameters set forth in Section 34177.5(a)(1) 
(the “Savings Parameters”), and to issue bonds for such purpose pursuant to Article 11 
(commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code (the “Refunding Law”); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined, based on current conditions in the 
municipal bond market, that it will achieve debt service savings in compliance with the Savings 
Parameters as evidenced by the analysis prepared by its Municipal Advisor, Harrell & Company 
Advisors, LLC, describing potential savings that will accrue to the Successor Agency and to 
applicable taxing entities as a result of the refunding of the Refunded Bonds (the “Debt Service 
Savings Analysis”); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined that issuance of the Bonds and 
refunding of the Refunded Bonds will satisfy the debt service savings conditions set forth in 
Section 34177.5(a)(1) of the Health and Safety Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has now determined that, due to prevailing financial 
market conditions, it is in the best interests of the Successor Agency at this time to refinance 
redevelopment activities within and for the benefit to the Redevelopment Project by means of the 
refunding of the Refunded Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency desires to issue its Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 
2025 Series A (the “Refunding Bonds”) for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds, to fund 
a debt service reserve account and pay costs of issuance; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Advisor to the Successor Agency for the Refunding Bonds has 
had input into the Board letter for this Resolution, which Board letter addresses matters described 
in Section 34177.5(h) of the Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency, with the aid of its staff, has reviewed the Indenture, 
the Notice of Intention to Sell, the Official Notice of Sale, the Preliminary Official Statement, the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the two separate Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreements 

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 28



3 

relating to the refunding of the Refunded Bonds (the “Escrow Agreements”), the forms of which 
are presented herewith and on file with the Clerk of the Board, and the Successor Agency wishes 
to approve the Indenture, the Notice of Intention to Sell, the Official Notice of Sale, the Preliminary 
Official Statement, a final Official Statement, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the 
Escrow Agreements and the issuance, sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 34179 of the Law, an oversight board (the “Oversight 
Board”) has been established for the Successor Agency and the Successor Agency has requested 
that the Oversight Board approve the issuance of the Refunding Bonds by the Successor Agency, 
as authorized by Section 34177.5(f) of the Law and the Indenture; and 

WHEREAS, following approval by the Oversight Board of the issuance of the Refunding 
Bonds by the Successor Agency to be effective upon approval by the California Department of 
Finance of such approval by the Oversight Board, the Successor Agency, with the assistance of its 
Municipal Advisor, will offer the Refunding Bonds by competitive sale;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1 Determination of Savings. The Successor Agency has determined that 
there are significant potential savings available to the Successor Agency and to applicable taxing 
entities in compliance with the Savings Parameters by the issuance by the Successor Agency of 
the Refunding Bonds to provide funds to refund the Refunded Bonds, all as evidenced by the Debt 
Service Savings Analysis presented herewith and on file with the Clerk of the Board of the 
Successor Agency, which Debt Service Savings Analysis is hereby approved. 

Section 2 Request for Direction. The Oversight Board is hereby requested to direct 
the Successor Agency to undertake the refunding proceedings pursuant to Section 34177.5(a)(1) 
for the issuance, sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds. 

Section 3 Approval of Issuance of the Refunding Bonds. The Successor Agency 
hereby authorizes and approves the issuance of the Refunding Bonds pursuant to the Refunding 
Law in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $95,000,000 for the purpose of providing 
funds to refinance the Refunded Bonds in whole or in part, to fund a debt service reserve account 
and pay costs of issuance. The Successor Agency further authorizes the sale of the Refunding 
Bonds, provided that the Refunding Bonds shall bear interest at such rates and shall be sold at such 
a price so as to (1) achieve the Savings Parameters required to be met by Section 34177.5(a)(1) of 
the Law and (2) achieve a net present value savings amount generated from the issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the Refunded Bonds, of at 
least 4%, and the underwriter’s discount shall not exceed 1% of the par amount of the Refunding 
Bonds, excluding original issue discount. 

Section 4 Indenture of Trust. The Successor Agency hereby approves the Indenture 
prescribing the terms and provisions of the Refunding Bonds and the application of the proceeds 
of the Refunding Bonds. Each of the Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors, as the presiding 
officer of the Successor Agency, the County Administrative Officer of the County of Santa Cruz, 

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 29



4 

as the chief administrative officer of the Successor Agency, the Assistant County Administrative 
Officer of the County of Santa Cruz, as the assistant chief administrative officer of the Successor 
Agency, the Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector as Treasurer of the Successor Agency 
(each, an “Authorized Officer”), is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, and the 
Clerk of the Board of the Successor Agency, is hereby authorized and directed to attest to, the 
Indenture for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, in substantially the form on 
file with the Clerk of the Board, with such changes therein, deletions therefrom and additions 
thereto as the Authorized Officer shall approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the 
execution and delivery of the Indenture. The Successor Agency hereby authorizes the delivery and 
performance of the Indenture. 

Section 5 Issuance in Separate Series. The Refunding Bonds may be issued as a 
single issue, or from time to time in separate series, as the Successor Agency shall determine. The 
approval of the issuance of the Refunding Bonds by the Successor Agency and by the Oversight 
Board shall constitute the approval of each and every separate series of Refunding Bonds, without 
the need for any further approval from the Oversight Board, provided that each such separate series 
of Refunding Bonds complies with the Saving Parameters required to be met by 
Section 34177.5(a)(1). 

Section 6 Notice of Intention to Sell. The Notice of Intention to Sell (the “Notice of 
Intention to Sell”), in the form presented herewith and on file with the Clerk of the Board of the 
Successor Agency, with such changes, insertions and omissions therein as may be approved by an 
Authorized Officer, is hereby approved, and the use of the Notice of Intention to Sell in connection 
with the offering and sale of the Refunding Bonds is hereby approved. The Authorized Officers 
are each hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor 
Agency, to cause the Notice of Intention to Sell to be published once in The Bond Buyer (or in 
such other financial publication generally circulated throughout the State of California or 
reasonably expected to be disseminated among prospective bidders for the Refunding Bonds as an 
Authorized Officer shall approve as being in the best interests of the Successor Agency) at least 
five days prior to the date set for the opening of bids in the Official Notice of Sale, with such 
changes, insertions and omissions therein as an Authorized Officer may require or approve, such 
requirement or approval to be conclusively evidenced by such publishing of the Notice of Intention 
to Sell. 

Section 7 Official Notice of Sale. The Official Notice of Sale (the “Official Notice of 
Sale”), in the form presented herewith and on file with the Clerk of the Board of the Successor 
Agency, with such changes, insertions and omissions therein as may be approved by an Authorized 
Officer, is hereby approved, and the use of the Official Notice of Sale in connection with the 
offering and sale of the Refunding Bonds is hereby authorized and approved. The terms and 
conditions of the offering and sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be as specified in the Official 
Notice of Sale. Bids for the purchase of the Refunding Bonds shall be received at the time and 
place set forth in the Official Notice of Sale. The Authorized Officers are each hereby authorized 
and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to accept the bid for the 

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 30



5 

Refunding Bonds with the lowest true interest cost, or to reject all bids therefor, in accordance 
with the terms of the Official Notice of Sale. 

Section 8 Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement. The 
Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Refunding Bonds, in the form presented herewith 
and on file with the Clerk of the Board of the Successor Agency, is hereby approved. The 
Authorized Officers are each hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of 
the Successor Agency, to cause the Preliminary Official Statement in substantially said form, with 
such additions or changes therein as the Authorized Officer may approve, to be deemed final for 
the purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (“Rule 15c2-12”). The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement to prospective purchasers of the Refunding 
Bonds in substantially the form hereby approved, together with such additions thereto and changes 
therein as are determined necessary by the Authorized Officer to make the Preliminary Official 
Statement final as of its date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12, including, but not limited to, such 
additions and changes as are necessary to make all information set forth therein accurate and not 
misleading. 

The preparation and delivery of a final official statement (the “Official Statement”), and 
its use by the Successor Agency and the winning bidder (the “Underwriter”) under the Official 
Notice of Sale, in connection with the offering and sale of the Refunding Bonds, is hereby 
authorized and approved. The Official Statement shall be in substantially the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be requested 
by Bond Counsel or the Underwriter and approved by the Authorized Officer, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. Each Authorized Officer is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute the Official Statement and any amendment or supplement 
thereto, in the name of and on behalf of the Successor Agency, and thereupon to cause the Official 
Statement and any such amendment or supplement to be delivered to the Underwriter. 

Section 9 Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The form of a continuing disclosure 
certificate in substantially the form appended to the Preliminary Official Statement and made a 
part hereof as though set forth in full herein (the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”), is hereby 
approved. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form appended to the Preliminary Official Statement with 
such changes insertions and omissions as may be requested by Disclosure Counsel and approved 
by the Authorized Officer, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval. 

Section 10 Escrow Agreements. The Successor Agency hereby approves the Escrow 
Agreements prescribing the provisions for refunding the Refunded Bonds, namely, the 2015A 
Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement and the 2016A Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement. Each 
Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, and the Clerk of the 
Board of the Successor Agency is hereby authorized and directed to attest to, the Escrow 
Agreements for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, in substantially the forms 
presented herewith and on file with the Clerk of the Board, with such changes therein, deletions 
therefrom and additions thereto as the Authorized Officer shall approve, such approval to be 

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 31



6 

conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Escrow Agreements. The Successor 
Agency hereby authorizes the delivery and performance of the Escrow Agreements. 

Section 11 Oversight Board Approval of the Issuance of the Refunding Bonds. The 
Successor Agency hereby requests that the Oversight Board approve the issuance, sale and 
delivery of the Refunding Bonds pursuant to this Resolution and the Indenture, as above described. 

Section 12 Filing of this Resolution. The Clerk of the Board of the Successor Agency 
is hereby authorized and directed to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Oversight 
Board, together with the Debt Service Savings Analysis, and, as provided in Section 34180(j), with 
the Santa Cruz County Administrative Officer, the Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller-
Treasurer-Tax Collector, and the California Department of Finance. 

Section 13 Determinations by the Oversight Board. The Successor Agency requests 
that the Oversight Board make the following determinations upon which the Successor Agency 
will rely in undertaking the refunding proceedings and the issuance, sale and delivery of the 
Refunding Bonds: 

(a) The Successor Agency is authorized, as provided in Section 34177.5(f), to
recover its costs related to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds from the proceeds of the Refunding 
Bonds, including the cost of reimbursing the County of Santa Cruz for administrative staff time 
spent with respect to the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds; 

(b) The application of proceeds of the Refunding Bonds by the Successor
Agency to the refunding and defeasance of the Refunded Bonds, as well as to the payment by the 
Successor Agency of all costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, as provided in 
Section 34177.5(a), shall be implemented by the Successor Agency promptly upon sale and 
delivery of the Refunding Bonds, and, notwithstanding Section 34177.3 or any other provision of 
law to the contrary, no further approval of the Oversight Board, the California Department of 
Finance, the Santa Cruz County Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector, or any other person 
or entity other than the Successor Agency shall be required; and 

(c) The Successor Agency shall be entitled to receive its full Administrative
Cost Allowance under Section 34183(a)(3) without any deductions with respect to continuing 
costs related to the Refunding Bonds, such as trustee’s fees, auditing and fiscal consultant fees and 
continuing disclosure and rating agency costs (collectively, “Continuing Costs of Issuance”), and 
such Continuing Costs of Issuance shall be payable from property tax revenues pursuant to 
Section 34183. In addition, and as provided by Section 34177.5(f), if the Successor Agency is 
unable to complete the issuance of the Refunding Bonds for any reason, the Successor Agency 
shall, nevertheless, be entitled to recover its costs incurred with respect to the refunding 
proceedings from such property tax revenues pursuant to Section 34183 without reduction in its 
Administrative Cost Allowance. 

Section 14 Appointments. The appointments of Harrell & Company Advisors, LLC 
as Municipal Advisor, Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, as bond counsel, and Stradling Yocca 
Carlson & Rauth LLP, as disclosure counsel, are hereby confirmed to act on behalf of the 
Successor Agency in the presentation of this Resolution and the Debt Service Savings Analysis to 

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 32



7 

the Oversight Board and for purposes of the proceedings for the issuance, sale and delivery of the 
Refunding Bonds. 

Section 15 Official Actions. All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of 
the Successor Agency with respect to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds are hereby approved, 
confirmed and ratified. The Authorized Officers, the County Counsel as general counsel of the 
Successor Agency, the Clerk of the Board and any and all other officers of the Successor Agency 
are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to 
do any and all things and take any and all actions, which they, or any of them, may deem necessary 
or advisable, including execution and delivery of any and all assignments, certificates, requisitions, 
including requisitions for the payment of costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, agreements, 
including agreements in customary form providing for the investment of the proceeds of the 
Refunding Bonds, notices, consents, and other documents, which they, or any of them, may deem 
necessary or advisable in order to obtain the requested approvals by the Oversight Board and the 
California Department of Finance and to consummate the sale, issuance and delivery of the 
Refunding Bonds; the funding of a reserve fund with proceeds of the Refunding Bonds or a letter 
of credit, surety bond or insurance policy if, upon the advice of the Municipal Advisor, the funding 
of the reserve fund will be economically beneficial to the financing; the insuring of all or any 
portion of the Refunding Bonds through one or more municipal bond insurance companies, if, 
upon the advice of the Municipal Advisor, such insurance will result in a lower true interest cost 
on the Refunding Bonds. Whenever in this Resolution any officer of the Successor Agency is 
directed to execute or countersign any document or take any action, such execution, countersigning 
or action may be taken on behalf of such officer by any person designated by such officer to act 
on his or her behalf in the case such officer is absent or unavailable. 

Section 16 California Department of Finance Approval. Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, the Refunding Bonds shall not be offered for sale or issued unless and until 
the California Department of Finance issues its letter approving the Oversight Board Resolution 
relating to the Refunding Bonds. 

Section 17 Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its passage 
and adoption. 

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1
6

Packet Pg. 33



Supervisors Koenig, De Serpa, Cummings, Martinez and Hernandez

None

None

Juliette Rezzato
Clerk of the Board of the Santa Cruz County 
Redevelopment Successor Agency

Felipe Hernandez
Chairperson of the Santa Cruz County 
Redevelopment Successor Agency

Resolution 10-2025

Docusign Envelope ID: 33D41EF7-F2FD-4D54-878B-0FFBD0F513B1

2/13/2025

2/13/2025

6

Packet Pg. 34



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Tax Allocation
Refunding Tax Allocation

Bonds Refunding
Allocable to Bonds

2015A Allocable to
Sources: Refunding 2016 Refunding Total

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 46,510,000.00 36,395,000.00 82,905,000.00
Premium 5,654,697.15 5,030,946.75 10,685,643.90

52,164,697.15 41,425,946.75 93,590,643.90

Other Sources of Funds:
Debt Service Fund for 9/1/2025 Payment 5,076,375.00 2,493,600.00 7,569,975.00

57,241,072.15 43,919,546.75 101,160,618.90

Tax Allocation
Refunding Tax Allocation

Bonds Refunding
Allocable to Bonds

2015A Allocable to
Uses: Refunding 2016 Refunding Total

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 0.68 0.38 1.06
SLGS Purchases 56,132,230.00 42,977,255.00 99,109,485.00

56,132,230.68 42,977,255.38 99,109,486.06

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 176,716.12 138,283.88 315,000.00
Underwriter's Discount 465,100.00 363,950.00 829,050.00
Bond Insurance Premium 305,471.75 249,644.75 555,116.50
Surety Bond Premium 158,756.25 185,325.00 344,081.25

1,106,044.12 937,203.63 2,043,247.75

Other Uses of Funds:
Rounding Amount 2,797.35 5,087.74 7,885.09

57,241,072.15 43,919,546.75 101,160,618.90

6

Packet Pg. 35



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

BOND DEBT SERVICE

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Period Debt
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Service

09/01/2026 4,085,000 5.000% 4,974,300 9,059,300
09/01/2027 5,065,000 5.000% 3,941,000 9,006,000
09/01/2028 6,750,000 5.000% 3,687,750 10,437,750
09/01/2029 7,040,000 5.000% 3,350,250 10,390,250
09/01/2030 7,390,000 5.000% 2,998,250 10,388,250
09/01/2031 8,240,000 5.000% 2,628,750 10,868,750
09/01/2032 8,645,000 5.000% 2,216,750 10,861,750
09/01/2033 9,085,000 5.000% 1,784,500 10,869,500
09/01/2034 9,535,000 5.000% 1,330,250 10,865,250
09/01/2035 10,010,000 5.000% 853,500 10,863,500
09/01/2036 7,060,000 5.000% 353,000 7,413,000

82,905,000 28,118,300 111,023,300

6

Packet Pg. 36



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Tax Allocation Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds Refunding Bonds

Allocable to Allocable to
2015A Refunding 2016 Refunding Total

Dated Date 06/19/2025 06/19/2025 06/19/2025
Delivery Date 06/19/2025 06/19/2025 06/19/2025
Arbitrage Yield 2.961780% 2.961780% 2.961780%
Escrow Yield 4.520980% 4.520980% 4.520980%
Value of Negative Arbitrage -172,092.40 -131,761.36 -303,853.76

Bond Par Amount 46,510,000.00 36,395,000.00 82,905,000.00
True Interest Cost 2.998842% 3.027892% 3.012767%
Net Interest Cost 3.220834% 3.275819% 3.247299%
All-In TIC 3.230300% 3.253184% 3.241259%
Average Coupon 5.000000% 5.000000% 5.000000%
Average Life 6.271 7.437 6.783

Par amount of refunded bonds 55,255,000.00 42,025,000.00 97,280,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 5.000000% 4.267985% 4.649043%
Average life of refunded bonds 5.821 7.049 6.351

PV of prior debt 61,925,689.78 46,012,699.57 107,938,389.36
Net PV Savings 5,048,860.61 2,291,911.44 7,340,772.05
Percentage savings of refunded bonds 9.137382% 5.453686% 7.546024%
Percentage savings of refunding bonds 10.855430% 6.297325% 8.854438%

6

Packet Pg. 37



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

SAVINGS

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Present Value
Prior Prior Prior Refunding to 06/19/2025

Date Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Debt Service Savings @  2.9617802%

09/01/2025 7,569,975.00 7,569,975.00 -44,381.81
09/01/2026 9,817,200.00 9,817,200.00 9,059,300.00 757,900.00 721,361.63
09/01/2027 9,759,700.00 9,759,700.00 9,006,000.00 753,700.00 707,559.58
09/01/2028 11,271,450.00 11,271,450.00 10,437,750.00 833,700.00 759,674.16
09/01/2029 11,218,450.00 11,218,450.00 10,390,250.00 828,200.00 732,570.96
09/01/2030 11,219,450.00 11,219,450.00 10,388,250.00 831,200.00 713,686.01
09/01/2031 11,740,600.00 11,740,600.00 10,868,750.00 871,850.00 726,858.07
09/01/2032 11,737,350.00 11,737,350.00 10,861,750.00 875,600.00 708,586.48
09/01/2033 11,746,600.00 11,746,600.00 10,869,500.00 877,100.00 688,982.42
09/01/2034 11,741,400.00 11,741,400.00 10,865,250.00 876,150.00 668,262.31
09/01/2035 11,740,000.00 11,740,000.00 10,863,500.00 876,500.00 649,134.79
09/01/2036 7,831,200.00 7,831,200.00 7,413,000.00 418,200.00 300,592.36

127,393,375.00 7,569,975.00 119,823,400.00 111,023,300.00 8,800,100.00 7,332,886.96

Savings Summary

Dated Date 06/19/2025
Delivery Date 06/19/2025
PV of savings from cash flow 7,332,886.96
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 7,885.09

Net PV Savings 7,340,772.05

6

Packet Pg. 38



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

SAVINGS

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Allocable to 2015A Refunding

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Present Value
Prior Prior Prior Refunding to 06/19/2025

Date Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Debt Service Savings @  2.9617802%

09/01/2025 5,076,375.00 5,076,375.00 -29,762.15
09/01/2026 6,448,000.00 6,448,000.00 5,870,600.00 577,400.00 552,540.01
09/01/2027 6,449,500.00 6,449,500.00 5,871,500.00 578,000.00 543,275.94
09/01/2028 6,451,250.00 6,451,250.00 5,876,500.00 574,750.00 524,454.63
09/01/2029 6,442,750.00 6,442,750.00 5,867,000.00 575,750.00 510,019.28
09/01/2030 6,449,000.00 6,449,000.00 5,873,250.00 575,750.00 495,115.58
09/01/2031 6,968,750.00 6,968,750.00 6,349,000.00 619,750.00 517,309.24
09/01/2032 6,970,750.00 6,970,750.00 6,350,250.00 620,500.00 502,783.03
09/01/2033 6,969,000.00 6,969,000.00 6,344,000.00 625,000.00 491,603.70
09/01/2034 6,968,000.00 6,968,000.00 6,345,000.00 623,000.00 475,682.08
09/01/2035 6,972,000.00 6,972,000.00 6,347,250.00 624,750.00 463,041.91

72,165,375.00 5,076,375.00 67,089,000.00 61,094,350.00 5,994,650.00 5,046,063.26

Savings Summary

Dated Date 06/19/2025
Delivery Date 06/19/2025
PV of savings from cash flow 5,046,063.26
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 2,797.35

Net PV Savings 5,048,860.61

6

Packet Pg. 39



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

SAVINGS

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Allocable to 2016 Refunding

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Present Value
Prior Prior Prior Refunding to 06/19/2025

Date Debt Service Receipts Net Cash Flow Debt Service Savings @  2.9617802%

09/01/2025 2,493,600.00 2,493,600.00 -14,619.66
09/01/2026 3,369,200.00 3,369,200.00 3,188,700.00 180,500.00 168,821.62
09/01/2027 3,310,200.00 3,310,200.00 3,134,500.00 175,700.00 164,283.63
09/01/2028 4,820,200.00 4,820,200.00 4,561,250.00 258,950.00 235,219.53
09/01/2029 4,775,700.00 4,775,700.00 4,523,250.00 252,450.00 222,551.68
09/01/2030 4,770,450.00 4,770,450.00 4,515,000.00 255,450.00 218,570.43
09/01/2031 4,771,850.00 4,771,850.00 4,519,750.00 252,100.00 209,548.83
09/01/2032 4,766,600.00 4,766,600.00 4,511,500.00 255,100.00 205,803.45
09/01/2033 4,777,600.00 4,777,600.00 4,525,500.00 252,100.00 197,378.73
09/01/2034 4,773,400.00 4,773,400.00 4,520,250.00 253,150.00 192,580.23
09/01/2035 4,768,000.00 4,768,000.00 4,516,250.00 251,750.00 186,092.87
09/01/2036 7,831,200.00 7,831,200.00 7,413,000.00 418,200.00 300,592.36

55,228,000.00 2,493,600.00 52,734,400.00 49,928,950.00 2,805,450.00 2,286,823.70

Savings Summary

Dated Date 06/19/2025
Delivery Date 06/19/2025
PV of savings from cash flow 2,286,823.70
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 5,087.74

Net PV Savings 2,291,911.44

6

Packet Pg. 40



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2015 Series A:
SERIAL 09/01/2025 5.000% 3,695,000.00

09/01/2026 5.000% 3,870,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2027 5.000% 4,065,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2028 5.000% 4,270,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2029 5.000% 4,475,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2030 5.000% 500,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000

TERM 09/01/2030 5.000% 4,205,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2031 5.000% 5,460,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2032 5.000% 5,735,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2033 5.000% 6,020,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2034 5.000% 6,320,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000
09/01/2035 5.000% 6,640,000.00 09/01/2025 100.000

55,255,000.00

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series A:
SERIAL 09/01/2025 5.000% 1,560,000.00

09/01/2026 5.000% 1,580,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2027 5.000% 1,600,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2028 5.000% 3,190,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2029 5.000% 3,305,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2030 4.000% 3,465,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2031 5.000% 3,605,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2032 5.000% 3,780,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2033 4.000% 3,980,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2034 4.000% 4,135,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2035 4.000% 4,295,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000
09/01/2036 4.000% 7,530,000.00 09/01/2025 101.000

42,025,000.00

97,280,000.00

6

Packet Pg. 41



Prepared by Harrell & Company Advisors

BOND PRICING

Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 2025 Series A

Debt Service Savings Analysis for February 11, 2025 Successor Agency Agenda

Maturity Premium
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price (-Discount)

Serial Bonds:
09/01/2026 4,085,000 5.000% 2.760% 102.622 107,108.70
09/01/2027 5,065,000 5.000% 2.640% 105.008 253,655.20
09/01/2028 6,750,000 5.000% 2.680% 107.065 476,887.50
09/01/2029 7,040,000 5.000% 2.720% 108.987 632,684.80
09/01/2030 7,390,000 5.000% 2.720% 110.982 811,569.80
09/01/2031 8,240,000 5.000% 2.730% 112.862 1,059,828.80
09/01/2032 8,645,000 5.000% 2.760% 114.532 1,256,291.40
09/01/2033 9,085,000 5.000% 2.870% 115.460 1,404,541.00
09/01/2034 9,535,000 5.000% 2.900% 116.846 1,606,266.10
09/01/2035 10,010,000 5.000% 2.990% 117.554 1,757,155.40
09/01/2036 7,060,000 5.000% 3.020% 118.692 1,319,655.20

82,905,000 10,685,643.90

Dated Date 06/19/2025
Delivery Date 06/19/2025
First Coupon 03/01/2026

Par Amount 82,905,000.00
Premium 10,685,643.90

Production 93,590,643.90 112.889022%
Underwriter's Discount -829,050.00 -1.000000%

Purchase Price 92,761,593.90 111.889022%
Accrued Interest

Net Proceeds 92,761,593.90

6

Packet Pg. 42



County of Santa Cruz Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board

Agenda Item Submittal
From: Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successor Agency
Subject: Oversight Board purpose and duties
Meeting Date: March 4, 2025

Formal Title: Consider presentation on the purpose and duties of the Santa Cruz 
County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board

Recommended Actions
Consider presentation on the purpose and duties of the Santa Cruz County 
Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board (CRSA-OB).

Executive Summary
Upon request of Board members, staff is providing an overview of the purpose and 
duties of the CRSA-OB. 

Background

The creation of redevelopment agencies in California was authorized by the Community 
Redevelopment Act, adopted in 1945. In 1952, Proposition 18 established tax increment 
financing for redevelopment agencies. Tax increment financing redirected property tax 
revenues over the amount levied in the base year (the inception year of each 
redevelopment project area) within the redevelopment project area from the affected 
taxing entities (school districts, county or city, special districts, etc.) to the redevelopment 
agency. 

On February 1, 2012, pursuant to ABX1 26, all redevelopment agencies in California were 
dissolved and the process for unwinding their financial affairs began. The process focuses 
on two goals: (1) ensuring that existing financial obligations of the former redevelopment 
agencies are honored and paid and (2) minimizing any additional obligations so that more 
funds are available to transfer to the affected taxing entities. To that end, the dissolution 
legislation established three new entities: the redevelopment successor agency, housing 
successor agency, and oversight board; and added duties and responsibilities to the 
county auditor-controller and the California Department of Finance (DOF).

Roles and responsibilities

The successor agency manages redevelopment projects underway at the time of 
dissolution, prepares the annual budget, prepares the Redevelopment Obligation 
Payment Schedule (ROPS) annually, makes payments identified on the ROPS, prepares 
the Prior Period Adjustment report, may refinance bonds to achieve savings, and 
disposes of redevelopment assets and properties as directed by the oversight board. Its 
actions are subject to the review of the oversight board and DOF.

7

Packet Pg. 43



The housing successor agency manages the former redevelopment agency’s housing 
functions and housing assets. Its actions are not subject to the review of the oversight 
board and DOF.

Oversight boards were established pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 
34179 (Attachment A), which requires the formation of oversight boards to the successor 
agencies of the former redevelopment agencies; defines the composition of the oversight 
board; defines what constitutes a quorum; that an oversight board must comply with the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, the California Public Records Act, and the Political Reform Act of 
1974; and that oversight boards have a fiduciary responsibility to holders of enforceable 
obligations and the taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax and other 
revenue. California Health and Safety Code Section 34179(j) further mandates the 
dissolution of the former individual city or county Oversight Boards within each county 
and the creation of a single Consolidated Oversight Board overseeing all redevelopment 
successor agencies within the County commencing on July 1, 2018.

The primary purpose of the oversight board, and as further defined in Health and Safety 
Code Sections 34180 and 34181 (Attachment 1), is to assist with the disposition of assets 
of the former redevelopment agencies. Oversight boards approve each successor 
agency’s administrative budget; duly approve each Recognized Obligation Payment; 
approve bond refinancings or direct a successor agency to commence bond refinancings 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34177.5, may direct a successor agency to 
dispose of assets and properties of a former redevelopment agency or transfer them to a 
local government; and may terminate or renegotiate existing agreements of a former 
redevelopment agency if it finds that early termination or other terms would be in the best 
interest of the local agencies or that the agreement does not qualify as an enforceable 
obligation. 

The county auditor-controller administers each RSA’s Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund (RPTTF). Tax revenues, equal to the amounts that would have been allocated to 
each former redevelopment agency, are placed in each RPTTF. Twice annually, the 
auditor-controller distributes to each RSA the amount identified on the oversight board- 
and DOF-approved ROPS as necessary to pay its obligations for each 6-month period, 
and distributes any remaining balance to the affected taxing entities in each former 
redevelopment project area. The auditor-controller also audits the Prior Period 
Adjustment report of each RSA annually.

The DOF has the right to review all actions of local oversight boards, and to approve or 
deny approval. Actions of the oversight board do not go into effect for five business days. 
During this time, the Department of Finance may request a review of the oversight board’s 
action. The Department of Finance, in turn, has 60 days from the date of the review 
request to approve the oversight board’s action or return it to the oversight board for 
reconsideration.

Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight 
Board

7

Packet Pg. 44



The members of the Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
Oversight Board include: 

1) One member appointed by the County Board of Supervisors;

2) One member appointed by the city selection committee;

3) One member appointed by the independent special district selection committee;

4) One member appointed by the County Superintendent of Education to represent
schools;

5) One member appointed by the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges to
represent community college districts;

6) One member of the public appointed by the County Board of Supervisors; and

7) One member appointed by the recognized employee organization representing the
largest number of successor agency employees in the county.

A list of the current Board members and alternates is attached (Attachment B).

At the first meeting of the CRSA-OB in August 2018, the CRSA-OB adopted Bylaws 
(Attachment C) to facilitate the process of the meetings and establish the rules for the 
Oversight Board. The Bylaws conform to the requirements of the Brown Act and 
Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.

In Santa Cruz County, the county and all 4 cities each elected to act as the redevelopment 
successor agency (RSA) for their former redevelopment agencies. The City of Santa Cruz 
RSA submitted and the DOF approved a Last and Final ROPS pursuant to Health and 
Safety Code Section 34191.6 prior to the formation of the CRSA-OB. They are therefore 
not subject to review by the CRSA-OB, with exceptions for bond refinancings, long-range 
property management plans, amendments to the Last and Final ROPS, and final 
dissolution. The City of Capitola RSA’s final dissolution was authorized by the DOF in 
October 2022, and approved by the CRSA-OB in January 2023, after it paid off all its 
enforceable obligations and disposed of all its assets. Currently, the 3 RSA’s of the 
County of Santa Cruz, City of Scotts Valley, and City of Watsonville remain subject to 
review by the CRSA-OB and DOF until their Last and Final ROPS or final dissolution. 
After the final dissolutions of the four remaining RSA’s the CRSA-OB will dissolve.

Submitted By: 
Edith Driscoll, Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

Recommended By:  
Carlos J. Palacios, County Administrative Officer

Artificial Intelligence Acknowledgment:  
Artificial Intelligence (AI) did not significantly contribute to the development of this 
agenda item.

7

Packet Pg. 45



7

Packet Pg. 46



7

Packet Pg. 47



7

Packet Pg. 48



7

Packet Pg. 49



7

Packet Pg. 50



7

Packet Pg. 51



7

Packet Pg. 52



7

Packet Pg. 53



7

Packet Pg. 54



7

Packet Pg. 55



Santa Cruz County Consolidated Redevelopment Successor Agency 
OVERSIGHT BOARD– 2025 ROSTER

POSITION HSC MEMBER FIRST ALTERNATE SECOND ALTERNATE
appointed by County 

 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Manu Koenig 
manu.koenig@santacruzcountyca.gov

appointed by 
CITY SELECTION 

COMMITTEE

Allan Timms, Scotts Valley
Atimms@scottsvalley.gov

appointed by 
INDEPENDENT SPECIAL 

DISTRICT 
Selection Committee 

(LAFCO)

Jim Anderson, Felton Fire Protection 
District
Jimwanderson@comcast.net

Ed Banks, Pajaro Valley Public 
Cemetery District
EdBanks@kbkinsurance.com

appointed by the COUNTY 
SUPERINTENDENT OF 

EDUCATION

Liann Reyes, Deputy Superintendent
Business Services, Santa Cruz County 
COE 
lreyes@santacruzcoe.org

Jim Monreal, Chief Business Official 
jmonreal@sccs.net

Rebecca Olker, Executive Director, 
Fiscal Services, 
rolker@santacruzcoe.org

appointed by the 
Chancellor of the 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY 
COLLEGES

Adam Spickler, Gov. Board Trustee,  
Cabrillo College, 
adspickl@trustee.cabrillo.edu,

Donna Ziel, Gov. Board Trustee, 
Area I         
zield43@yahoo.com, 

appointed by the County 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Member of the PUBLIC 

Joe Hall
rama@cruzio.com

appointed by the 
recognized EMPLOYEE 

ORGANIZATION 
representing the largest 

number of successor 
agency employees 

Kathryn Mintz
Development Manager
kmintz@santacruzca.gov 

CHAIR:            VICE CHAIR: 

7

Packet Pg. 56

mailto:manu.koenig@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Atimms@scottsvalley.gov
mailto:Jimwanderson@comcast.net
mailto:EdBanks@kbkinsurance.com
mailto:lreyes@santacruzcoe.org
mailto:jmonreal@sccs.net
mailto:rolker@santacruzcoe.org
mailto:adspickl@trustee.cabrillo.edu
mailto:zield43@yahoo.com
mailto:rama@cruzio.com
mailto:kmintz@santacruzca.gov


2

RSA staff contacts:

County:
Kim Namba, Sr Dept Admin Analyst Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov

Scotts Valley:
Stephanie Hill, Admin Service Director shill@scottsvalley.gov, 
Kirsten Powell, Attorney Kpowell@scottsvalley.gov

Watsonville:
Marissa Duran, Director of Finance  Marissa.duran@watsonville.gov  

Santa Cruz:
Bonnie Lipscomb blipscomb@santacruzca.gov  

Staff to the CRSA-OB:
Kim Namba Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov

Clerk of the CRSA-OB: 
Juliette Rezzato Juliette.rezzato@santacruzcountyca.gov 

Attorney for the CRSA-OB:
Jason Heath Jason.Heath@santacruzcountyca.gov

Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector:
Edith Driscoll Edith.Driscoll@santacruzcountyca.gov

7

Packet Pg. 57

mailto:Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:shill@scottsvalley.gov
mailto:Kpowell@scottsvalley.gov
mailto:Marissa.duran@watsonville.
mailto:blipscomb@santacruzca.gov
mailto:Kim.Namba@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Juliette.rezzato@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Jason.Heath@santacruzcountyca.gov
mailto:Edith.Driscoll@santacruzcountyca.gov


7

Packet Pg. 58



7

Packet Pg. 59



7

Packet Pg. 60



7

Packet Pg. 61



7

Packet Pg. 62



7

Packet Pg. 63



7

Packet Pg. 64



7

Packet Pg. 65



7

Packet Pg. 66



7

Packet Pg. 67



7

Packet Pg. 68



7

Packet Pg. 69



7

Packet Pg. 70



7

Packet Pg. 71


	Agenda
	Zoom Link
	Notice of 
	Regular Agenda

	Packet Materials
	Item 4 - Minutes Approval
	Resolution Approving Minutes of January 15, 2025

	Item 5 - Electing Chair and Vice Chair
	Resolution Electing Chair and Vice Chair

	Item 6 - Refinancing CRSA Bonds
	Resolution Approving Issuance and Sale of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
	CRSA-OB Resolution 10-2025
	Debt Service Savings Analysis

	Item 7 - Presentation on CRSA-OB Purpose and Duties
	Code Sections
	2025 CRSA-OB Membership Roster
	CRSA-OB Bylaws





